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I. INTRODUCTION

1. In this Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture, we initiate enforcement action against

MediaOne of Metropolitan Detroit, Inc. (“MediaOne”), pursuant to Section 503(b) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended and Section 1.80 of the Commission’s rules.
  For the reasons discussed below, we find that MediaOne has apparently violated Section 76.605(a)(12) of the Commission’s rules,
 which prohibits cable systems, operating in the 54-216 MHz band, from radiating in excess of 20 micro-volts per meter at a distance of three meters from the cable.  Based on a review of the facts and the circumstances surrounding these violations, we find that for its conduct MediaOne is apparently liable for forfeiture in the amount of fifty-five thousand dollars ($55,000).

II. DISCUSSION

2.
Under the Commission's regulatory framework, a cable system's use of the spectrum is dependent upon its ability to control signal leakage.  Cable operators using coaxial cable to transmit signals may not exceed the signal leakage limits set out in the Commission's rules.  This allows cable television systems and authorized over-the-air users to use the same frequencies in the same area.  To do so, systems must meet stringent Commission signal leakage standards to ensure that their use of frequencies in the coaxial cable will not interfere with proximate authorized over-the-air services.  Where aeronautical frequencies are involved, the need for cable signal containment is vital.  The Commission has repeatedly expressed its concern over the danger that exists to life and property from cable systems, such as MediaOne's, that produce excessive signal leakage.
  

3.
On August 9, 1999, engineering staff from the Commission's Compliance and Information Bureau
 at Detroit, Michigan, inspected MediaOne's cable television system serving Oak Park, Michigan.  The staff’s inspection of the system was based on a complaint from the United States Air Force Rescue Coordination Center regarding interference to the international distress and safety frequency, 121.5 MHz.
  This frequency is allocated for use by distress beacons.
  On August 9, the Commission’s investigation determined that MediaOne’s system was emitting a signal leakage level of 1,416 micro-volts per meter on frequency 121.5 MHz., well in excess of the Commission's signal leakage standard of 20 micro-volts per meter, and thus in violation of Section 76.605 of the Commission’s rules.
  Based upon the magnitude of the emissions detected on August 9, it was also determined that the system's operation constituted a general threat to aeronautical communications, in addition to the actual interference caused to air distress communications.  In this regard, the Commission has indicated that a cable system operating with an ambient signal leakage level exceeding the Cumulative Signal Leakage Index (“CLI”) criteria set forth in Section 76.611 of the Commission’s rules,
 such as MediaOne's, endangers the functioning of the radionavigation service and/or aeronautical communications.
  Accordingly, MediaOne was directed by Commission staff to cease operations in the frequency bands 108-137 MHz and 225-400 MHz because such endangerment constitutes harmful interference as defined by Section 76.613 of the Commission’s rules,
 in addition to the actual interference caused to the Air Force’s safety frequency.  MediaOne complied by curtailing service in the relevant frequency bands.  On August 11, l999, MediaOne supplied Commission staff with the results of the cable operator’s leakage measurements for the Oak Park system, as measured on August 10, l999.  These measurements indicate that the system was emitting signal leakage in excess of the Commission’s signal leakage standards, and thus in violation of Section 76.605 of the Commission’s rules, on August 10, l999.
  

4.
Based upon the above facts, it appears that the MediaOne system had been producing signal leakage in excess of the Commission's standards and that this noncompliance threatened the Commission's regulatory goal of compatibility between the use of frequencies by cable television systems and various services in the same area, and was a serious threat to public safety.  We note that MediaOne complied immediately with the staff's directive and has now eliminated the cited excessive signal leakage.  However, such corrective action does not excuse MediaOne’s initial failure to maintain the integrity of its cable distribution plant or relieve it of liability for such dereliction.  It is well-settled that subsequent corrective action will not relieve liability nor avoid a forfeiture.
  Thus, it appears that on August 9 and 10, l999, MediaOne violated Section 76.605(a)(12) of the Commission's rules, and further, that such violation was exacerbated by MediaOne's operation of its system on August 9 in excess of the CLI criteria set forth in Section 76.611 of the rules and the resulting interference to the Air Force’s safety frequency.  Because of the serious threat to the public safety caused by such operation, we find the level of signal leakage measured on August 9, l999 to be particularly egregious and a substantial aggravating factor.


5.
We find MediaOne to be in apparent violation of the Commission’s rules on August 9 and 10, l999.
  In determining the amount of the forfeiture, we are guided by The Commission’s Forfeiture Policy Statement and Amendment of Section 1.80 of the Rules to Incorporate the Forfeiture Guidelines,
 which takes into consideration the factors set forth in Section 503(b)(2) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended.
  Under these standards, $8,000 is the base forfeiture for violations of rules relating to distress and safety frequencies.
 


6.
We believe, however, that the egregious nature of the violation and the substantial harm caused by MediaOne’s actions justify a significant upward adjustment to the base forfeiture.
  Section 1.80 (b)(1) of the Commission’s rules limits the amount of forfeiture the Commission may assess against a cable television operator to $27,500 for each violation.
  In this matter, we believe that the harm caused by MediaOne’s violation was serious enough to warrant the maximum allowable forfeiture of $55,000 for violation of Section 76.605 on August 9 and 10, l999.    


7.
With regard to this forfeiture proceeding, MediaOne of Metropolitan Detroit, Inc. may take any of the actions set forth in Section 1.80 of the Commission’s rules, as presented in Appendix B, attached to this Notice. 

III. CONCLUSION AND ORDERING CLAUSES


8.
Accordingly, pursuant to Section 503(b) of the Communications Act of l934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. Section 503(b), and Section 1.80 of the Commission’s rules, 47 C.F.R. Section 1.80, MEDIAONE OF METROPOLITAN DETROIT, INC. IS APPARENTLY LIABLE FOR A FORFEITURE in the amount of fifty five thousand dollars ($55,000), for its repeated violation of Section 76.605(a)(12) of the Commission's rules on August 9 and 10, l999.  


9.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, pursuant to Section 1.80(f)(3) of the Commission’s rules, 47 C.F.R. Section 1.80(f)(3), that within 30 days of the release of this Notice, MEDIAONE OF METROPOLITAN DETROIT, INC. SHALL PAY the full amount of the proposed forfeiture OR SHALL FILE a response showing why the proposed forfeiture should not be imposed or should be reduced.

10.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a copy of this Notice SHALL BE SENT TO MEDIA ONE OF METROPOLITAN DETROIT, INC. by Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested.






FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION






Magalie Roman Salas                                                   






Secretary 

Attachment

APPENDIX A

DATE

LOCATION



MICROVOLTS/METER
8/9/99

22911 Scotia, Oak Park, MI

1,416 on 121.5 MHz

8/9/99

22911 Scotia, Oak Park, MI

84,459 on 126.0 MHz

8/10/99

23040 Republic, Oak Park, MI

62 on 139.25 MHz

8/10/99

Manhatten/Kipling, Oak Park, MI
282 on 139.25 MHz

8/10/99

23220 Meadowlark, Oak Park, MI
190 on 139.25 MHz

8/10/99

13341 Dartmouth, Oak Park, MI

60 on 139.25 MHz

8/10/99

22145 Sussex, Oak Park, MI

300 on 139.25 MHz






APRIVATE 
PPENDIX B

IMPORTANT - READ INSTRUCTIONS AND RETURN ATTACHED FORM
The document you have received is a Notice of Apparent Liability (NAL).  You may take any of the following actions under Section 1.80 of the Commission's Rules:


You may pay the full amount of the forfeiture within 30 days of the date of the NAL.  In this case, you should complete the appropriate sections of the attached form and sent it along with a check or similar instrument for the amount specified, made payable to the Federal Communications Commission.  To assure that your payment is properly recorded, please enter on your check the control number appearing in the upper right hand corner of the attached form and return the extra copy of the NAL that is enclosed, together with the check, to:





Federal Communications Commission





Post Office Box 73482





Chicago, IL.  60673-7482


Within 30 days of the date of the NAL you may file a statement, in duplicate, as to why the proposed forfeiture should be reduced.  The statement must be signed by the licensee or registrant; a partner, if the licensee or registrant is a partnership; by an officer, if the licensee or registrant is a corporation; or by a duly elected or appointed official, if an unincorporated association, and the statement must be supported by pertinent documents and affidavits.  The statement may include any justification or any information that you desire to have considered.  If you elect to follow this course, you should complete the appropriate section of the attached form and send it along with your statement.  Upon such consideration, it will be determined whether any forfeiture should be imposed, and if so, whether any forfeiture should be imposed in full or reduced to some lesser amount.  An order stating the result will be issued.  Address your statement to:





Federal Communications Commission





Cable Services Bureau





445 12th Street, S.W.





Washington, D.C.  20554


You may take no action.  In this case a Forfeiture Order will be issued after expiration of the thirty-day period ordering that you pay the forfeiture in full.  If you decide to take no action, you need not return the attached form.


If, in response to this NAL, you claim a financial inability to pay the full amount of the forfeiture, you should furnish data to support your claim.  The data submitted should include, but need not be limited to, a profit and loss statement that has been prepared under generally accepted accounting principles.  The statement that you furnish should contain no data older than one year from the date of your response.


Items in the statement should include income from cable operations, expenses from cable operations (including noncash expenses, such as amortization and depreciation)and payments to principals (including salaries, commissions, management fees, interest, rents, etc.).  If you are an individual or company with multiple cable holdings, you should furnish separate profit and loss statements for each entity you own or control, or a consolidated profit and loss statement.  You are advised that all financial data furnished with your response will be routinely available for public inspection absent a request for nondisclosure setting forth the reasons therefor pursuant to Section 0.457(d)(2)(i) of the Commission's Rules.


If you have any questions concerning this forfeiture proceeding, please communicate in writing to:





Federal Communications Commission





Cable Services Bureau





445 12th Street, S.W.










Washington, D.C.  20554

or contact Commission staff personnel by telephone at (202) 418-1055 or by FAX at (202) 4l8-1069.


FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSIONPRIVATE 


Washington D. C. 20554

NOTICE OF APPARENT LIABILITY



CONTROL NO:  X12000002

In response to a Notice of Apparent Liability for a monetary forfeiture under the provisions of Section 503(b) of the Communication Act of l934, as amended:

 (CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX)


 |  |
I am returning a copy of the Notice of Apparent Liability and enclosing a check or similar instrument, drawn to the order of the Federal Communications commission, in full payment of the forfeiture amount as indicated in the Notice of Apparent Liability.  I have entered the control number appearing in the upper right hand corner of this page on my check and am submitting it to:




Federal Communications Commission




Post Office Box 73482




Chicago, IL.  60673-7482


 |  |
I am submitting a detailed statement of facts and reasons why I believe the forfeiture as assessed in the Notice of apparent Liability is not warranted and should be reduced or rescinded to:




Federal Communications Commission




Cable Services Bureau




445 12th Street, S.W.




Washington, D.C.  20554

_________________________


___________________________________

Licensee or Registrant



Call sign or CUID, City, State

_________________________


__________________

  

Signature of authorized official


Date

______________________________________

Amount of forfeiture as indicated by the NAL

NOTICE OF INDIVIDUAL REQUIRED BY THE PRIVACY ACT
Section 308(b) and 503(b) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, authorize the Commission to request this information, the purpose of which is to determine your liability for a forfeiture.

The staff will use all relevant and material information before it, including the information disclosed in your statement to determine whether the forfeiture should be cancelled, reduced or paid in full.  Notices of Apparent Liability are a matter of public record.

THE FOREGOING NOTICE IS REQUIRED BY THE PRIVACY ACT OF 1974, P.L. 93-570, DECEMBER 31, 1974, 5 U.S.C. 532a(e)(3).

� 47 U.S.C. § 503(b); 47 C.F.R. § 1.80.


� 47 C.F.R. § 76.605(a)(12).


� Amendment of Part 76 of the Commission’s Rules to Add Frequency Channelling Requirements and Restrictions and to Require Monitoring for Signal Leakage From Cable Television Systems (Second Report and Order in Docket 21006), 99 FCC 2d 512 (l984); recon. denied, 100 FCC 2d 117 (1985); Amendment of Part 76 of the Commission’s Rules to Add Frequency Channelling Requirements and Restrictions and to Require Monitoring for Signal Leakage From Cable Television Systems (Report and Order in Docket 21006), 65 FCC 2d 813 (1977).


� The Commission’s field staff have since been reorganized as part of the Commission’s Enforcement Bureau.  This action was initiated and supported by the field staff as part of their continuing compliance activities.


� The Air Force first “heard” the interference on its Search and Rescue Satellite-Aided Tracking (“SARSAT”) system on August 5, l999.  The Air Force dispatched Civil Air Patrol to locate the source of the interference, without success.  The Air Force closed the case (Mission #99M1693) on August 7, l999, as SARSAT no longer “heard” the signal.  On August 9, the interfering signal was once again “heard” by SARSAT in the same general area of Oak Park, Michigan.  The Air Force once again dispatched Civil Air Patrol (Mission #M99M1723), which could not locate the signal.  The Air Force then contacted Commission staff, who investigated and found MediaOne’s excessive cable signal leakage.  Once the leaks were corrected, the Air Force no longer experienced interference to its SARSAT system. 


� 47 C.F.R. § 2.106.


� Commission staff also measured a signal leakage level of 84,459 micro-volts per meter on frequency 126.0 MHz on August 9, l999, which exponentially exceeded the same 20 micro-volts per meter standard of the Commission’s rules.  See Appendix A.


� See 47 C.F.R. § 76.610.  Section 76.610 states that the provisions of Section 76.611 are applicable to all cable television systems which transmit carriers or other signal components carried at an average power level equal to or greater than 10(4 watts across a 25 KHz bandwidth in any 160 microsecond period, at any point in the cable distribution system in the frequency bands 108-137 and 225-400 MHz for any purpose.  MediaOne's signal use satisfies these conditions.


� See Second Report and Order in Docket 21006, supra, at 524.


� 47 C.F.R.§ 76.13.


� See Appendix A.


� See, e.g., Executive Broadcasting Corp., 3 FCC 2d 299 (1969).


� See Appendix A.


� 12 FCC Rcd 17087 (1997).


� See Note to 47 U.S.C. §534(b)(6). 


� 47 C.F.R. §1.80(b)(4)(section 1).


� See Note to 47 C.F.R. § 180 (b)(4)(section 2).


� 47 C.F.R. §1.80 (b)(1).


� See Appendix B.
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